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Abstract

U.S. government information is not always easy to get on the internet.  How does a searcher find it?  One can find a plethora of government information on the invisible web.  This paper surveys a number of these web search tools.  Tools range from Google and other search engines to more sophisticated finding aides.  These aides vary in type according to what government information is searched for, and some of these aides will be discussed.

Want U.S. Government Information? Try the Invisible Web


Google and other search engines continue to map out the web as it grows, giving its searchers access to more than 8 billion web pages (Kay, 2005), although this sounds like an impressive number, there are many times more web pages that remain unseen to the average search engine crawler.  These unseen pages are termed part of the “invisible web.”  Why are these pages invisible?  Invisible web pages may not be static, and they may not be referred to by other web pages, thus making them invisible to the search engine web crawlers (Kay, 2005).  Other reasons for invisibility: Even pages that are crawled by the search engine many not tell the whole story, because crawlers may not go deeper, encompassing only the first/home page and leaving other levels of the site unseen; crawlers may not crawl with enough frequency—missing new pages; the search engine only lists a certain number of pages per search, thus dropping pages from a return, rendering these unseen; pages that don’t submit their URL’s to a search engine and are not linked to by other pages will not be visible; private pages require passwords, disallow crawling, or don’t allow meta tag crawling; proprietary web pages require registration (not necessarily fee based but can be) which the crawler can’t fulfill; some pages are intentionally ignored by the search engine due to: lack of will and spam (which can flood a search engine); and relational databases are not crawled because the crawler doesn’t know how to retrieve information from it (Sherman, 2005).  Another reason many pages remain invisible is that the crawlers favor text based pages, so that many images, sound/audio files, PDF files, and others are ignored (Sherman, 2005).  Researchers are working on indexing these files into search engines, but many pages are still invisible.  


U.S. government documents are being produced constantly, and the U.S. government is the biggest producer of web pages (Sherman, 2005), unfortunately, most of the documents are in PDF format, thus they are part of the invisible web.  Luckily for the searcher, there are ways to access this government information.  This paper will examine some of the different avenues available to the web researcher interested in U.S. government information.

Basic Access


Certain directories (created by humans who choose a number of relevant web sites in a number of subject areas) and focused crawlers (crawling over a certain subject area) cover U.S government information (Sherman, 2005).  Here are some directories: www.carrollpub.com : directory broken down into Local, Sate and Federal levels of government; and http://www.gpoaccess.gov/index.html : covers Federal level and gives some help in finding information (Sherman, 2005).  Here are some focused crawlers: http://lawcrawler.lp.findlaw.com/ : deals with the legal side of federal government (Supreme Court opinions, Constitution, government sites, etc.); www.politicalinformation.com : has political information and crawls dot-coms, edu’s, mil’s, etc., crawlers runs every 3 weeks; www.searchmil.com : specializes in military areas (more on military searches later); www.searchedu.com : deals with education related topics, with a concentration on university materials; and www.firstgov.gov : U.S. government site: touts itself as the “one stop” search page for U.S. government information, also has a directory of government sites (Sherman, 2005).  Here’s a government resource: http://www.cast.uark.edu/other/nps/nacd/ : deals with contact information for every Native American tribes (Sherman, 2005).  Here’s one for the IRS: www.1040.com (Sherman, 2005).  For access to government documents use: www.access.gpo.gov : for bibliographic records from the Federal Depository Libraries (coverage begins in 1994) or the official products from the U.S. Government Printing Office, has a lot of access to invisible web materials; and www.state.gov : has a lot of materials on foreign policy, international issues, and overseas programs (Sherman, 2005).  Here’s a couple on government officials: www.c-span.org : C-span’s coverage of the voting record of Congressional officials since 1994; and www.usmayors.org gives biographical information on most mayors (Sherman, 2005).  Here’s a few sites on government programs (but definitely not all sites): www.cfda.gov/ : deals with federal domestic programs; and www.ssa.gov is a FAQ’s on Social Security (Sherman, 2005).  Here’s a site that shows who has registered to lobby the Congress: www.tray.com (Sherman, 2005).  These three sites deal with statistics: www.fedscope.opm.gov : deals with numbers involving Federal employment; www.fedstats.gov : deals with statistics from more than seventy agencies; and www.census.gov : deals with official Census information (Sherman, 2005).  At the Library of Congress American Memory Collection, one can find information on American culture and history (Young, 2002)

Google and Others


Google has made gains in indexing government materials on the invisible web by creating the ability to index PDF files (Goldsborough, 2006).  Also, Google can limit a search to only government or military sites (previously stated) by looking for only dot-gov or dot-mil (Grenough, 2006).  Infomine is a directory that includes government as one of its subject headings (Grenough, 2006).  InvisibleWeb.com also has a directory that lists government as one of its subjects—another good search possibility (Pack, 2002).  

Congressional Research Service (CRS)


Onto more in-depth research on the sources for locating government documents in the invisible web, one producer of unseen web materials is the CRS.  The CRS does research for members of congress on any variety of government-related (public policy) topics.  The CRS are made-up of highly qualified individuals who advance through a meritocracy.   What the CRS produces can be very valuable for interested searchers.  Their research topics include but are not limited to: AIDS, gasoline prices, stem cell research, and global climate change.  The CRS website is: www.loc.gov/crsinfo/ , but this site doesn’t give access to their writings, so one needs other tools to reach their research. Obviously, they do not want the public to know what the research results are, but some of the reports have become public domain, and tools are available to find information that has become public.  The CRS is divided into research departments: American Law, Domestic Social Policy, Foreign Affairs, Defense and Trade, Government and Finance, Knowledge Services Group, and Resources, Science, and Industry (Liptak, 2005).  Please keep in mind virtually all its documents are PDF files.  


One way to get a CRS report is to request one from your Federal U.S. Congressperson at: www.senate.gov/general/contact_information/senators_cfm.cfm (for senators) and www.house.gov/ (for representatives) (Liptak, 2005).  OpenCRS at www.opencrs.com is another public source for these reports (Liptak, 2005).  OpenCRS has around 10,000 reports, which can be searched by keyword or browsed (Liptak, 2005).  The University of North Texas Library is also compiling CRS reports (website: http://digital.library.unt.edu/govdocs/crs/ ); they have over 6500 CRS reports; University of North Texas Library and OpenCRS are planning to cooperate on collecting CRS reports (Liptak, 2005).  The CRS full text reports at the University of North Texas Library site can be searched by keyword, title, author, subject, and report number; or one can browse their collection.  (These are the advantages of having a library index these writings!)  The University of North Texas Library site also provides links to other sources on CRS reports.  A few sites concentrate on obtaining CRS reports on specific subject areas, these sites are: National Council for Science and the Environment at www.ncseonline.org/ (focus on environmental and related issues), Thurgood Marshall Law Library at www.law.umaryland.edu/marshall/crsreports/index.asp (health law, policy, and Homeland Security), Federation of American Scientists at www.fas.org/sgp/crs/index.html (dealing with avoiding the use of nuclear weapons), Intellectual Property at www.ipmall.info/ (focus on intellectual property), National Memorial Institute for the Prevention of Terrorism at www.mipt.org/ (preventing terrorism), and the U.S. State Department’s Bureau of Public Affairs at http://fpc.state.gov/c4763.htm (foreign policy) (Liptak, 2005).  


Lastly, there is a commercial site that claims to have a comprehensive collection of all CRS reports (that are public and not created for the private use of congress officials; they are Penny Hill Press at www.pennyhill.com/ (Liptak, 2005).  It is great access if one is willing to pay the price. 

Finding Military Information


Besides the sites I’ve mentioned, there are also sources for more in-depth coverage on the current U.S. military (not military history).  There are directories that really help in finding information on the military (check the name of the page sponsor to determine the site’s specialty): Dudley Knox Library of the Naval Post-Graduate School deals with subject categories such as Manpower, Budget, Awards & Medals, Education & Research, Equipment, and Organizations (and if one follows the tree down these categories, it is further divided by service branch) and www.au.af.mil/au/awc/awcgate/awcgate.htm is the site for the Air War College, included on this directory are categories such as: Issues, doctrine, and Warfighting, Logistics, Space Operations, and Military Law (Metz, 2004).  The Air University Library has a site that leads to many bibliographies on military and defense topics (arranged alphabetically); the bibliographies include these sources: sections of books, government documents, articles, and internet materials; here is the link: www.au.af.mil/au/aul/bibs/bib97.htm (Metz, 2004).  


Here’s a portal to the Department of Defense (DoD), www.defenselink.mil/sites/, that leads to information on, through the Defense Almanac, departments, money, employees, and equipment (Metz, 2004).  The Military Analysis Network, www.fas.org/man/index.html, compares the service branches in terms of force strength, organization, and goals (Metz, 2004).  Use www.fas.org/search.html for weapons information (Metz, 2004).  Go to www.dtic.mil for information on scientific and technical topics (Metz, 2004); this is a search engine specifically designed to search these invisible parts of the web.  When searching the site, use Boolean operators and quoted terms for phrases, parentheses nesting, and * or % to truncate.  The Combined Arms Research Library has begun digitization to save materials, most documents are in PDF and some deal with operations and logistics (Metz, 2004).  The Center for Army Lessons Learned deals with operations, troop movement, and training, but the site has problems with bad searching software and poorly scanned materials (Metz, 2004).  


The Combined Arms Research Library also has a site that links with other research institutes: http://cgsc.leavenworth.army.mil/carl/gateway ; Instutute of Land Warfare, at www.ausa.org/ilw, deals with the role of the army and the thinking related to its development; and Rand Corporation, at www.rand.org/research_areas/, a non-partisan think tank with a militarily relevant section named National Security (includes troop movement, contracts, strength force needs, etc.) (Metz, 2004).


Another area to research for information on the military is their OPAC.  One can search the entire 14 military libraries at http://merln.ndu.edu/ ; along the same lines, one can ask a librarian a military-related question at www.knox.army.mil/school/ops/library or www.jfsc.ndu.edu/library (Metz, 2004).  


Lastly, if you’re not sure, you can browse through search engines such as AlltheWeb; or go to www.defenselink.mil/search (Metz, 2004).

Conclusion


After reading a more comprehensive survey of search tools for the U.S. military and CRS, it is apparent that there are many more sources available to search the other various components that comprise the U.S. government.  Unfortunately, this short piece does not allow larger breadth in coverage of other sources for other areas of government such as the Local, State, and Federal levels.  

It would be informative to know the tools that make searching items such as the local fire department or city council.  At this local level, information would help the citizen to be more involved in our republican form of government—definitely a positive aspect of our Information Age.  Extending this line of thought, the same understanding of State government improves the health of our republic as a whole, because more informed citizens are likely to be more involved in governance, a goal of representative government.  There are so many areas to explore to increase understanding: the Judicial system and its different levels, the police force, the social welfare departments and its different levels, the Intelligence bureaus with their ties to the Patriot Act, etc.  This paper has begun that exploration and involvement.
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